
 
 

 

 

 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 

 

 

This email message, and any attachments to it, is intended only for the individual or entity to 

which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material.  Any unauthorized 

review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, or the 

employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, please contact the 

sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message and attachments.    



 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Oakland Community College will be held on Tuesday,  
June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Highland Lakes Campus Student Center, 7350 Cooley Lake Road, 
Waterford, Michigan.  This meeting will include a closed session, pursuant to MCL 15.268, Sec. 8(c), to 
receive an update on labor negotiations. 
 
AGENDA           
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ATTENDANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

4.1 May 18, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes     A – ACTION 
4.2 May 18, 2021 Closed Session Minutes      B – ACTION 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

5.1. Community Comments 
5.2. Student Government Report  
5.3. Academic Report 

5.3.1. Academic Senate Update 
5.3.2. Provost Update 

5.4. Chancellor’s Comments 
 

6. MONITORING REPORT  
6.1 Winter 2021 Monitoring Report       C – INFORMATION  
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
7.1. Board of Trustees MCCA Representative and Alternate    D – ACTION 
7.2. SEMCOG Board Representative      E – ACTION 
7.3. State Building Authority Reconveyance of Auburn Hills F Building Ownership F – ACTION 
7.4. Modification of Auburn Hills Campus Building Name    G – ACTION 
  

8. INFORMATION ITEMS – none 
 

MOVE INTO CLOSED SESSION, PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268(c), TO RECEIVE AN UPDATE ON 
LABOR NEGOTIATIONS. 

 
9. BOARD COMMENTS 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
Mission:  OCC is committed to empowering our students to succeed and advancing our community. 



  
 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING  

MINUTES 
May 18, 2021 

Oakland Community College 
Highland Lakes Campus Student Center 

7350 Cooley Lake Road 
Waterford, Michigan 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chair Jackson called the meeting to order at 6:18 p.m. 
 

2. ATTENDANCE 
 
Present: 
Pamela S. Jackson, Chair 
Kathleen A. Bertolini, Vice Chair 
Susan Gibson, Secretary 
Susan E. Anderson, Treasurer 
Shirley Bryant, Trustee 
Pamala M. Davis, Trustee (arrived 6:24 p.m.) 
 
Absent: 
Christine M. O’Sullivan, Trustee 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Trustee Bryant MOVED to approve the agenda, and Trustee Gibson seconded. 
 
AYES: Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS: None          Motion Carried 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Items 4.1 to 4.3 listed below on the Consent Calendar – Board Meeting Minutes are considered to be routine 
by the Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these minutes unless 
a Board member or the Chancellor so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general 
order of business and discussed separately. 
 
Chair Jackson asked if any of the trustees would like an item pulled for separate discussion.  There being no 
such request, the Chair asked for a motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes Consent Calendar items 4.1 
through 4.3.  Trustee Bertolini so MOVED, and Trustee Gibson seconded. 
 
 



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 

AYES:  Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:  None         Motion Carried 

 
4.1  February 16, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes    A – ACTION 
4.2  February 16, 2021 Closed Session Minutes     B – ACTION 
4.3  March 27, 2021 Special Board Meeting Minutes    C – ACTION 
 

END OF CONSENT CALENDAR – BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
5.1. Community Comments  

 
OCCFA President Gina Mandas addressed the Board regarding a decision be made regarding the Fall 
Semester format.  She asked that students and employees be informed as early as possible as to how we will 
be providing classes to the students. 
 

5.2. Student Government Report – no report 
  

5.3. Academic Report 
 
5.3.1. Academic Senate Update 

 
Academic Senate Chair John Mitchell provided the Senate update report. Some of the items discussed 
included: 

• Working on several academic policies - including a revision of the academic dishonesty 
policy and a clarification of the N Mark policy and procedures, particularly for online and 
remote classes 

• The Senate Leadership Constitutional Ratification subcommittee continues work to revise the 
Senate Constitution 

• Senate, and especially the CIC, are overseeing the academic aspects of the College’s 
upcoming move to early registration for Fall semester, including revising the handbook and 
calendar 

• Developing a plan to revise, update, and realign the College’s assessment practices 
 

5.3.2. Provost Update 
 

Dr. Jennifer Berne highlighted some recent events at OCC: 
• Scholarship Recognition Ceremony, which recognized student scholarship recipients and 

donors 
• Outstanding Student Recognition Ceremony – Extraordinary students were recognized via 

video recording from the faculty honoring them 
• Nursing Program Pinning Ceremony for winter and spring graduates 

Event Coordinator Ken Faulk and his events team were acknowledged for all the work they put into 
making these virtual events happen. 
 
Dr. Berne also noted that after 15 months of mostly remote teaching, we are getting better all the time. 
Many of our full-time faculty are now trained in online and hybrid course development, and adjunct 
faculty has been offered the same training opportunity.  Communicating with students is key to set 
them up for success. 

 
 



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 
 

5.4. Chancellor’s Report 
 
Mr. Provenzano commented on the following: 
 

• Seven new employees were recognized: 
o Dawnmarie Chmiel-Yelcho, Executive Director of Culinary and Hospitality 
o Aishwarya Ponkshe, Business Intelligence Analyst 
o Linda Ruggirello, Marketing and Community Relations Coordinator 
o Andre’ Poplar, Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and DEI 
o Sheila Acker, Director of Marketing 
o Keith Walker, Desktop Support Specialist 
o Hannah Braun, Grants Coordinator 

• Seven retirees were recognized for their service at OCC: 
o Robert Cowles, Groundskeeper – 32 years 
o Laurie Huber, Director of Admissions – 19 years 
o Charles Machise, Facility Technician – 35 years 
o Janet Whitfield, Buyer - 17 years 
o Judith Portwood, Learning Resources Tech – 10 years 
o Laura Ketelhut, Public Safety Officer – 10 years 
o Nancy Huey, Financial Aid Specialist – 33 years 

The Chancellor thanked Ms. Huey for her service and presented her with a certificate.  Ms. Huey 
thanked OCC for the opportunity to help so many students during her time here. 

• Eunice Jeffries, Director of Government and Community Relations, was recognized as one of this 
year’s Women of Excellence by the Michigan Chronicle 

• Dr. Debra Rowe, Psychology and Social Science faculty member, served as co-moderator and             
co-organizer of “Connecting Sustainable Energy Businesses with Education – Getting the Workforce 
You Need,” a webinar hosted by World Bank and the United Nations Environment Programme 

• Melissa O’Leary, Marketing & Communications Digital Strategist, presented “How to Authentically 
Engage Gen Z and Millennials on Social Media and Measure the Results” at the National Council for 
Marketing & Public Relations Conference 

• David James, English faculty member, had two poems published in the February issue of Antonym 
titled “Better Living through Chemistry” and “Cry if You Want To” 

• Karyn Holiday, ESL faculty, collaborated with her daughters on their second book, Sparkles the 
Spider Learns to Love Herself 

• Dr. Steve Simpson, Chief Strategy Officer, and Zheng Wang, Director of Analytical Studies, had their 
presentation on “Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Strategic Planning: How to Advance Institutional 
Policy through BI Tools” win best presentation at the Michigan Association of Institutional 
Researchers Annual Conference 

• Nina Barkell and Susan Snyder, Nursing faculty members, presented their doctoral project, “Just 
Culture During the COVID-19 Pandemic,” to the Michigan Nurses Foundation 

• Chancellor Peter Provenzano was asked by Oakland County Executive Dave Coulter to serve as a 
member of the Oakland County 2021 COVID-19 Economic Recovery Task Force  

• Cindy Carbone, Academic Dean for Communication, Arts and Humanities, was recognized by the Phi 
Theta Kappa Honor Society with a Distinguished College Administrator Award 

• Robert Spann, Dean of Student Services and Interim Admissions Director, served as the keynote 
speaker at the Farmington Public Schools Turn Around Awards, sharing his inspirational story about 
how he overcame challenges in his life 

• Mary Ann Sheble, Academic Dean – Learning Resources, was elected Vice Chair/Chair Elect of the 
Detroit Area Library Network (DALNET) Board of Directors 

• Tylonn Sawyer, Art faculty member, is featured in Hour Detroit for a new exhibition, “White History 
Month Volume I and II: the Year of the Flood Exhibit,” at the N’Namdi Center for Contemporary Art 

 
 



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

• Allison McFadden Keesling, Highland Lakes Librarian, was awarded first place and Darlene 
Johnson-Bignotti, Royal Oak Librarian, was awarded an honorable mention by Research Help Now, a 
statewide consortium of Michigan academic libraries 

• Tony Baracco, History faculty member, and Youmin Lee, English faculty member, have been 
awarded the 2020-2021 Asian & Global Studies Course Development Grant from the Center for 
Global Studies, East Asia Center, South Asia Center, and Southeast Asia Center in the Henry M. 
Jackson School of International Studies at the University of Washington 

• Students Elena Wong and Joseph Sheremet were selected as a 2021 Coca-Cola Academic Team Gold 
Scholar, each receiving a $1,500 scholarship.  Ms. Wong was OCC’s first international officer of 
PTK during 2020.  

• Student Tala Alahmar earned the prestigious Jack Kent Cook Scholarship and will receive up to 
$40,000 per year to attend a four-year accredited undergraduate school.  Ms. Alahmar was elected the 
2021 international president for PTK. 

• Another scholarship recipient is student Yuliia Lane, who is one of 15 Phi Theta Kappa members 
nationwide to be named a 2021 Guistwhite Scholar, and was also a semifinalist for the Jack Kent 
Cook Scholarship 

• Both Juliia Lane and Richard Trombley were awarded the Michigan Memorial Scholarship 
• OCC’s 4 PTK Chapters received 18 different awards at state level, with some of the awards being 

given to multiple chapters totaling 30 awards college-wide 
• OCC’s Automobile Servicing Program successfully achieved national accreditation in Automobile 

Service Technology by the ASE Education Foundation 
• Once again, OCC’s Finance Department was awarded the Distinguished Budget Award for budget 

and financial planning from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 
• Six Culinary community education classes will be taught by faculty chefs this summer, covering such 

topics as grilling, food & wine pairing, and summer salads 
• OCC’s Virtual Commencement is scheduled for June 12 at 10 a.m., with a car parade to follow at the 

Orchard Ridge Campus 
• OCC was featured in the media with the Chancellor being interviewed on WWJ.950, articles 

appearing in The Farmington Voice, The Oakland Press, The Detroit News, and C&G Newspapers, 
as well as a student story on WXYZ channel 7 
(Report on file) 
 

6. MONITORING REPORT – no report 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
 
7.1. Budget and Financial Forecast Fiscal Years Ending 2022-2026   D – ACTION 

 
Vice Chancellor for Administrative Services Bobbie Remias and Director of Budget and Financial Planning 
Renee Oszust discussed the proposed budget and financial forecast for fiscal years ending 2022-2026. 
 
Ms. Oszust addressed the following topics:  

• Operating revenue 
• Revenues – tuition and fees  
• Enrollment projection 
• Operating expense 
• Budget and financial forecast summary 

 
Ms. Remias discussed: 

• Capital budget  
• Campus facility projects 

 
 



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 

• Future plans: 
o Provide a balanced budget and fiscally responsible financial forecasts 
o Address deferred maintenance and infrastructure improvements on all campuses 
o Coordinate spending increase with our Strategic Plan 
o Maintain our focus on the College Mission of “empowering our students to succeed and 

advancing our community” 
 
Trustee Anderson MOVED the Board of Trustees approve the General Appropriations Act for the 2021-2022 
fiscal year.  Trustee Gibson seconded. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None         Motion Carried 
 

7.2. 2021-2022 Tax Levy of Operating Millage     E – ACTION 
 
Trustee Bertolini MOVED the Board of Trustees adopt the resolution to levy the maximum annual tax rate 
and authorize the Vice Chancellor for Administrative Services to notify the proper assessing office of each 
municipality to effectuate compliance with this resolution.  Trustee Anderson seconded. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None         Motion Carried 
 

7.3. Appointment of Audit Committee Member 
 
Trustee Davis MOVED the Board of Trustees approve John McCulloch to serve as the community member 
to the OCC Audit Committee. Trustee Anderson seconded. 
 
Trustee Bertolini suggested we should look into getting some new, diverse leaders.   
 
Ms. Remias explained this vacancy occurred the beginning of the year when Audit Committee member 
Michael Carroll retired after having served five years.  The requirements to serve on the committee consist of 
a business background and that the individuals lives or works in Oakland County.  Occasionally, an Audit 
Committee vacancy announcement is published, and Ms. Remias will be glad to do so in the future. 
 
Trustee Davis voiced that Mr. McCulloch knows the college very well having served in the capacity of a 
Board member, Chair, and a member of the Audit Committee. 
 
Trustee Gibson inquired if Mr. McCulloch would fill the remainder of Mr. Carroll’s term or is this a new 
term.  Ms. Remias stated the Audit Committee terms are two years, with anyone serving three two-year terms 
having to step down thereafter.  Mr. McCulloch would be serving a two-year term. 
 
Trustee Davis called the question. 
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None         Motion Carried 
 
       



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

8. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
As there was no separate discussion called for Information Items 8.1 through 8.5 on the Consent Calendar, Chair 
Jackson asked for a motion to receive and file these reports.  Trustee Bryant so MOVED, and Trustee Gibson 
seconded. 
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None         Motion Carried 
 
8.1. Finance Quarterly Report       C - INFORMATION  
8.2. College Facilities Quarterly Report      D - INFORMATION  
8.3. Information Technology Quarterly Report       E - INFORMATION 
8.4. OCC Foundation Quarterly Report      F - INFORMATION 
8.5. Strategic Plan Update        G - INFORMATION 
(Reports on file) 

 
END OF CONSENT CALENDAR – INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
Chair Jackson asked for a motion to move into closed session, pursuant to MCL 15.268(c), to receive an update 
on labor negotiations. Trustee Gibson so MOVED, and Trustee Bertolini seconded. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None          Motion Carried 
 
The Board went into closed session at 7:23 p.m. 
 
The Board returned to open session at 8:08 p.m. 
 

9. BOARD COMMENTS 
 
Trustee Bertolini said she missed everyone, and was glad to be back. 
 
Trustee Bryant thanked Public Safety for their assistance this evening. 
 
Chair Jackson noted that this year’s Garden Party is once again cancelled due to COVID.  She announced that so 
far the Board of Trustees has contributed $2,500 to the Foundation for this event.  Individuals may donate by 
going to the OCC Foundation webpage, with gifts being matched through June 30. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Jackson asked for a motion to adjourn.  Trustee Anderson so MOVED, and Trustee Gibson seconded.   
 
AYES:     Anderson, Bertolini, Bryant, Davis, Gibson, Jackson 
 
NAYS:     None         Motion Carried 
 
 
 



Board of Trustees 
May 18, 2021 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

Chair Jackson adjourned the meeting at 8:11 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Cherie A. Foster 
 
________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
________________________________ 
Pamela S. Jackson, Chair 
 
 
________________________________ 
Susan Gibson, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mission:  OCC is committed to empowering our students to succeed and advancing our community. 
 



 

 

ACTION 
 Board Agenda Item 4.2 

 June 15, 2021 
 
 
 

MAY 18, 2021 CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
 

 
Per the Open Meetings Act, closed session minutes must be approved in an open meeting (with 
contents of the minutes kept confidential), these minutes will be distributed to the trustees at the 
June 15, 2021 Board meeting for approval. 
 



                                             
 
 

INFORMATION 
Board Agenda Item 6.1 

June 15, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WINTER 2021 

MONITORING REPORT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



2 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Mission, Values, Vision & Strategic Plan ..................................................................................................... 4 

Board Ends and Strategic Objectives ............................................................................................................ 5 

OCC Goals and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) .................................................................................... 5 

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Tracking .................................................................................................. 6 

1.1: Become a student-ready college, promoting agency, access, and success for all students .................... 7 

Winter 2021 Admissions Highlights ......................................................................................................... 7 

Office of Secondary Partnerships Highlights .......................................................................................... 10 

Workforce Training & Continuing Education ........................................................................................ 11 

College Readiness ................................................................................................................................... 12 

Course Success and Retention ................................................................................................................ 14 

2019-20 Career and Technical Education (CTE) Indicators via Perkins V ............................................ 15 

Transfer Actions & Achievements .......................................................................................................... 15 

1.2: Promote educational excellence, innovation, and support ................................................................... 18 

OCC Teaching and Learning Center (TLC) ........................................................................................... 19 

Global Education Co-curricular Assessment .......................................................................................... 20 

Curriculum, Student Learning, and Evaluation ...................................................................................... 20 

Veterans Services .................................................................................................................................... 26 

Career Guidance & Opportunities ........................................................................................................... 27 

Data, Research, and Analysis for Continuous Improvement .................................................................. 28 

1.3: Engage in continuous improvement through organizational analysis to nimbly respond to external 

opportunities and threats ............................................................................................................................. 30 

2.1: Create transparent data infrastructure that allows for high levels of accountability and engagement 

from all employees ...................................................................................................................................... 31 

2.2: Promote a culture of communication, collaboration, respect, and civility ........................................... 32 

3.1: Build an integrated diversity, equity, and inclusion infrastructure to support students, staff, and 

community .................................................................................................................................................. 33 

Conclusion .................................................................................................................................................. 35 

Acknowledgements ..................................................................................................................................... 36 

Glossary ...................................................................................................................................................... 36 

 

 

 



3 
 

Executive Summary 
 

Oakland Community College (OCC) has continued to adapt to meet dynamic student needs over 

a year into the COVID-19 global pandemic.  In addition to the complex challenges students may 

be facing in their lives, this time has brought innovation, perseverance, and community.  The 

College has continued to adapt and evolve, providing students with options to stay safe and stay 

on track.   

 

National reports show that in Winter 2021, community college enrollment fell 9.5%.  At OCC, 

while headcount enrollment is down 6.8% over the prior year, credit enrollment fell only 4%.  

Both changes still placed OCC as first in the region and in the top quartile statewide according to 

comparative data from early in the Winter semester.     

 

Within this trend, average enrolled credits per student have risen from 7.98 to 8.20.  Additional 

credit enrollment helps students accelerate progress toward achieving their academic goals.  

Further, the conversion rate of new admitted to enrolled students in the Winter semester has 

increased from 23.1% to 34.1% in the past five years.   

 

Course success and fall to winter retention experienced a decline as student lives, work, income, 

families, and educational plans adapted to economic and public health conditions. 

 

Finally, cohort-based metrics such as college readiness and Career and Technical Education 

(CTE) success via Perkins indicators allow the College to assess trends on broader student 

outcomes over time, and in comparison to peer institutions.   

 

OCC continues to welcome new and returning students via the Michigan 

Reconnect program and to make significant investments in student 

success and equity as strategic priorities of the College.   

 

Within the community, OCC Chancellor Peter Provenzano, Jr. serves on 

the reconvened 2021 COVID-19 Economic Recovery Task Force to help 

guide Oakland County’s recovery from the pandemic and the investment 

in its long-term transformation. 

 

The stories of students, faculty, and staff in this time are inspiring, 

as people have come together and found new ways to teach, learn, 

and support one another.  The College remains a central partner in 

helping to achieve the County and State goals for postsecondary 

credential attainment via Oakland80 and Michigan Sixty by 30.  OCC is 

committed in its mission to empower students and advance the community 

in higher education awareness, aspirations, access, and success.  The 

College will continue to evolve to meet the needs of its students, to 

contribute to a skilled workforce and economic growth, to provide enrichment through lifelong 

learning and professional development, and to create innovative opportunities and pathways 

toward higher education credential attainment. 

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/mireconnect/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/mireconnect/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/oaklandcovidtaskforce.aspx
https://www.oakgov.com/exec/sotc/initiatives/Pages/oakland80.aspx
https://www.sixtyby30.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/about/mission-strategic-priorities-vision.aspx


4 
 

Mission, Values, Vision & Strategic Plan 

 
Strategic Direction 1: Cultivate Operational Excellence and Sustainability  

1.1 Become a student-ready college, promoting agency, access, and success for all 
students 

1.2 Promote educational excellence, innovation, and support 
1.3 Engage in continuous improvement through organizational analysis to nimbly respond 

to external opportunities and threats 
 

Strategic Direction 2: Build a People First Organization 
2.1 Create transparent data infrastructure that allows for high levels of accountability and 

engagement from all employees 
2.2 Promote a culture of communication, collaboration, respect, and civility 

 
Strategic Direction 3: Advance Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Policy and Practice 

3.1    Build an integrated diversity, equity, and inclusion infrastructure to support students,          

staff, and community    



5 
 

Board Ends and Strategic Objectives 
 

According to Board of Trustee Policy 4.1, Oakland Community College’s purpose is to provide 

affordable higher education services to the people of Oakland County and the regional 

community, which advance individual economic mobility, personal growth, and the local 

economy, at a cost commensurate with the value of services provided.  The eight Board Ends and 

the updated Strategic Plan create an educational environment that fosters student learning and 

supports student success.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OCC Goals and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 

Oakland Community College (OCC): 

• Offers wide-ranging options for higher education and professional training, at all stages 

of career and life 

• Partners with other higher education institutions, secondary education, government, 

workforce, and community 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/policies/documents/?file=61


6 
 

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Tracking 
 

In service of OCC’s Board Ends and strategic objectives, and as core measures of continuous 

improvement, the College has established several Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to track 

and evaluate throughout the year.   

• Each Winter semester indicator links to a report section with additional data, context, and 

interpretation.   

• Targets for each indicator were determined based on the range of normal fluctuation, a 

forecast aligned with recent performance, the current context inside and outside OCC, 

and the College’s actions for improvement.   

• Input from faculty and staff helped inform targets.  Ongoing research and analysis will 

continue to refine targets and support alignment with the College’s strategic plan.   

 

Fall Semester KPIs 2018 2019 2020  
2019-20  

% Change 
2020 

Target 
Target to 

Actual 

Conversion rate 32.4% 33.0% 35.7% +8.2% 33.0% +2.7% 

Headcount enrollment 15,942 15,668 14,727 -6.0% 15,668 -941 

Average enrolled credits 8.17 8.18 8.51 +4.0% 8.60 -0.09% 

Course success (all courses 
completed grade C or higher) 

72.4% 72.5% 69.4% -4.3% 73.5% -4.1% 

Fall to Fall persistence  54.1% 56.4% 52.3% -7.3% 55.8% -3.5% 

 

Winter Semester KPIs 2019 2020 2021  
2020-21  

% Change 
2021 

Target 
Target to 

Actual 

Conversion rate 29.6% 33.9% 34.1% +0.6% 33.0% +1.1 

Headcount enrollment 15,212 15,263 14,223 -6.8% 15,263 -1,040 

Average enrolled credits 8.01 7.98 8.20 +2.8% 8.40 -0.2 

Course success (all courses 
completed grade C or higher) 

71.5% 70.9%1 69.5% -2.0% 71.9% -2.4 

Fall to Winter retention 72.5% 73.0% 71.2% -2.5% 72.4 -1.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 Course success in Winter 2020 includes “Credit” grades for students who elected the Credit/No Credit option 
offered due the impacts of COVID-19. 



7 
 

1.1: Become a student-ready college, promoting agency, access, and 

success for all students 
 

This mission-critical strategic objective of the College involves meeting students where they are, 

empowering them through equitable systems and support structures, and providing services to 

help ensure their successful goal completion.  Current strategic actions in this area include: 

• Improvement of developmental education outcomes through access, placement, and 

corequisite models 

• Expansion of online programs and courses 

• Understanding and supporting the African American/Black Student Experience 

• Building equity of student retention 

Efforts to promote student success begin from when a student is first recruited and admitted to 

OCC, then continue throughout their pathway to goal completion.   

 

Winter 2021 Admissions Highlights 
 

Collaborated with Marketing and Institutional Effectiveness to advance strategic enrollment 

management 

• Expanded Virtual Offerings and e-Communication through Winter 2021 Recruitment 

Season 

• Four coordinators and one CRM specialist now support eight inboxes, five texting lines, 

and all virtual events, in addition to serving on over a dozen committees at the College 

and throughout the State.     

o Nearly 14,000 emails sent to Winter semester prospects 

o Over 4,000 texts sent since October 2020 

o Over 600 recruitment calls placed to Guest Students and FTIAC (First Time in 

Any College) who indicated Summer 2021  

o More than 100 virtual recruitment events 

▪ Over thirty 60-minute Michigan Reconnect Zoom sessions completed, 

providing live guided support for up to 15 students in each session (NEW) 

▪ Admissions designed and delivered its first Virtual Transfer Fairs with 

more than 50 University partners in attendance, generating over 150 

prospects during two evening sessions (NEW) 

▪ FTIAC engagement and recruitment initiatives included the addition of 

Virtual Escape Rooms and Virtual Brown Bag Series (NEW) 

▪ Admissions kicked off its lunchtime professional development series for 

counselors with of the nation’s fastest growing professions, Cybersecurity 

(NEW) 

 

In partnership with the State of Michigan, Financial Aid and Marketing—Adult Learner 

recruitment increased dramatically Winter 2021 with the additions of Future for Frontliners and 

Michigan Reconnect, state programs guaranteeing qualified residents a tuition-free associate 

degree and/or certificate. 

• Michigan Reconnect set record-breaking applications rates February 2-5 



8 
 

• F4F and Michigan Reconnect 24/7 web support developed, robust virtual pages 

containing dozens of linked resources and contacts 

• Dedicated F4F and Michigan Reconnect inboxes established and supported 

• Over 30 live, guided support sessions delivered via Zoom for participating 

F4F/Reconnect adult learners.  Coordinators, Student Recruiters and Financial 

collaborated to provide live guided support during the 60-minute sessions 

 

Student Recruiters connect with prospective students and families to share their OCC experience 

and encourage them to join the College.   

• In the fourth year of the program, Student Recruiters provided over 400 hours of 

recruitment and support for more than 100 events   

• Admissions added a new leadership role for second-year participants who will now 

support training, coaching, and scheduling 

• The Student Recruiter program continues to be one of the best recruitment tools with talk 

of expansion.  The current Student Recruiters are highly dedicated students with 

inspirational backgrounds from around the globe. 

 

Data Trends 
The efforts of Admissions and their collaborations across the College have led to a higher 

rate of student conversion, accompanied by a significant increase in average enrolled credits. 

 

 

Source: Institutional Effectiveness, End of Session Data 

23.1% 26.1%
29.6%

33.9% 34.1%

15.0%

25.0%

35.0%

45.0%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Winter Semester Conversion Rate

1,669 1,746 1,541 2,025 2,063

0

1,000

2,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

New Admitted to Enrolled Students: Winter Trend

8.03 8.01 8.01 7.98
8.21

7.50

8.00

8.50

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Winter Semester Average Credits

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/futures4frontliners/
https://oaklandcc.edu/mireconnect/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/admissions/student-recruiter/default.aspx


9 
 

Winter 2021 Initial Enrollment Comparison Data 
 

Nearly all Michigan community colleges saw declines in student headcount and credit 

enrollment in Winter 2021 compared to the prior year.   

• OCC ranked #8 out of 27 community colleges in terms of student headcount change.  The 

colleges ranged from -26% to -2%.   

 
 

• OCC ranked #6 out of 27 community colleges in terms of credit hour enrollment change.  

The colleges ranged from -24% to +2.3%.   

 
Source: Weekly report via https://www.mccssa.org/ as of 1/19/21, with institution-level reports ranging from 1/4 
through 1/19 and OCC Data from 1/19.  These are not official final reports; comparison is limited by differing dates. 

 

Early Summer 2021 Enrollment Data 
 

• Slight increases on all metrics over prior year 

• MI Reconnect boost in students age 25 and over (+823 over 2020; 28% increase) 

• More returning students (+712; 10% increase) 

• Peer comparison difficult in summer; start dates and term structures vary widely 
 

Category Summer 2020 Summer 2021 # Change % Change 

Total 
Headcount 

10,026 10,042 +16 +<1% 

Total Credits 59,961 61,398 +1,437 +2% 

Average 
Credits 

6.0 6.1 +0.1 +2% 

Comparison as of day 88 of registration (6.3.21), Source: Institutional Effectiveness Registration Dashboard 

-30

-20

-10

0

Michigan Community Colleges
% Change in Headcount Winter 2020 to Winter 2021

-30

-20

-10

0

10

Michigan Community Colleges
% Change in Credit Hours Winter 2020 to Winter 2021

https://www.mccssa.org/
https://www.mccssa.org/


10 
 

Office of Secondary Partnerships Highlights 
(i.e Dual Enrollment/Early Middle College) 

 

• College in High School Power Hour  

This first-time event was designed to educate Oakland County high school students and their 

parents about the various ways to earn college credit before graduating from high 

school.  Leaders from Oakland Early College, Oakland ACE, and Oakland Technical Early 

College discussed the value of their programs and how to enroll.  OCC staff explained the 

vast number of support services that can help students succeed in dual enrollment, Early 

Middle College, and Career and Technical Education articulated programs.  Finally, 

participants at the virtual event heard four compelling student testimonials about how college 

in high school helped propel them toward their educational goals while saving money.  Sixty-

five people from across the county registered for the virtual event. 

 

• Bridging the Gap (BtG) Collaborative  

BtG aims to align secondary and postsecondary mathematics and English Language Arts 

(ELA) curricula for the purpose of improving student success upon entry into college.  The 

year-long project involves coaching by and between designated secondary and postsecondary 

instructors to promote understanding of literacy/writing and math expectations.  Intensive 

workshops, local and national speakers, along with innovative deliberate design sessions 

have shaped meaningful dialogue and long-term relationships.  The project will yield useful 

curriculum guides and alternative assessment tools to help bridge academic gaps, thereby 

mitigating the need for remediation.  Partners include 16 committed educators from the 

Pontiac, Oak Park and Hazel Park school districts.  Participants will earn continuing 

education credits from MDE. 

 

• Articulation Agreements  

Developed and disseminated an articulation agreement matrix to Counselors.  As of January 

2021, OCC had active articulation agreements with 18 school districts in 51 career and 

technical education courses.  Comparative metrics for secondary articulation agreements 

between 2015 and 2020 are as follows: 

 2015 2020 

# of distinct students who requested credits 218 110 

# of courses requested 265 242 

# of credits processed 42 171 

# of students awarded credit 31 90 

 

• Paperless Dual Enrollment Process  

Sparked by the pandemic, OCC launched an electronic dual enrollment process allowing 

high schools and students to use electronic signatures to apply for dual enrollment courses.  

Using the newly purchased DocuSign product, OCC combined the dual enrollment and 

FERPA authorization forms and converted it into a fillable PDF, thereby eliminating the need 

to chase down paper forms from students and parents. The process was designed, piloted and 

revised during 2020-2021 and will officially be available to public/private schools and self-

pay families in June 2021.   

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/futurestudents/early-college/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/futurestudents/early-college/default.aspx


11 
 

• Virtual Career Club at OCC (VCC@OCC)  

As a spin-off from the Middle School Empowerment Experience with the Pontiac School 

District, OCC launched a virtual speakers bureau to provide 8th graders in Pontiac with 

exposure to practitioners in the graphic arts arena.  Four professionals shared their 

educational and career trajectories, while an OCC counselor suggested coursework to fulfill 

such careers.  Students engaged in rich dialogue with the speakers as they displayed their 

talent monthly. 

 

• Detroit Area Pre-College Engineering Program (DAPCEP) Partnership 

OCC is partnering with the non-profit DAPCEP to deliver a Saturday Cyber Security class to 

high school students during six weeks over the Winter 2021 term and six weeks in the Fall 

2021 term.  Students from multiple districts will be invited to participate. 

 

• Bridge to Success (BtS) Summer Program  

As a part of OCCs Strategic Planning efforts, the BtS program was designed to help increase 

the number of dually enrolled students at OCC.  The 3-week experience will be piloted in 

2022 for three invited districts and will include two college readiness courses, along with 

seminars featuring inspirational speakers who will help high school students to establish 

positive mindsets about college.  The BtS Action Project will serve up to 40 students and 

falls under the college’s Educational Access goal, while also addressing equity. 

 

 

Workforce Training & Continuing Education 
 

• February 2021: training program for PLC and Robotics Technician  

• Also in February 2021, students were invited to join a free eight-week training program 

to prepare them for entry-level CNC machine operator positions. 

• Multiple information sessions on OCC’s new, no-cost Pre-Apprenticeship Program,  

and how it can provide students with a career path in manufacturing or an employer-

sponsored apprenticeship. 

• OCC’s Economic and Workforce Development has partnered with William 

Beaumont Hospital and the Oakland County- Michigan Works! Agency to 

offer a unique 12-week training program to prepare students for in-demand 

healthcare jobs as certified Sterile Processing Technicians  

• Grant Support: 

o OCC will receive approximately $735,000 over four years from the GRCC 

healthcare professional grant 

o OCC renewed $235,000 Oakland County MI Works grant for workforce 

development 

o OCC will receive approximately $250,000 from WIN grant collaboration 

• Continuing Education continues to offer a wide range of in-person and online 

programming for personal and professional growth.   

 
 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAyMTUuMzUyODIzMjEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5vYWtsYW5kY2MuZWR1L2NlL2RvY3MvQ05DVzIxLnBkZiJ9.vnjgFVJP5hEqbj7ZOHyiTesCgKPRa3bBEB3IV0-2D2JLs_s_499821237_br_97617223612-2Dl&d=DwMFaQ&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=8OjGNK1h31U5S18skQZZEZRaqSSylFzx778ABYybuug&s=ijh36xE0gcCh5hrynolP0sJwpGx3DkpWzV8-f9fAnw0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAxMTkuMzM1Mzg4MDEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5ldmVudGJyaXRlLmNvbS9lL3ByZS1hcHByZW50aWNlc2hpcC1wcm9ncmFtLWluZm9ybWF0aW9uLXNlc3Npb24tdGlja2V0cy0xMzMyNDk0NzM3NjMifQ.H3ntyU-2D62rFKv64XTE6aSpBwgNKTYdi86ZUgdU8Mj9k_s_499821237_br_93280447038-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=RVIY60bjN4QI5LlPXFvTBwFsLDcs6pq9IOUGMANS4j0&s=Lz_Z3lRnhlUnHIsZ9_7YsKGv75lIOOJxuX8ZRg6guWs&e=
https://www.beaumont.org/
https://www.beaumont.org/
https://www.oakgov.com/workforce/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/sterileprocessingtech.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/ce/default.aspx


12 
 

College Readiness 
 

During Winter 2021, faculty and staff continued with extensive collaborative planning to design 

corequisite course options in English and Math, supported by cross-functional teams through 

strategic planning. The corequisite support options will shorten the time to completion for 

students who otherwise would have placed into lower-level prerequisite developmental courses.   

 

English: 

 

• In English, the new ENG 1510E course allows more students to enroll directly in college-

level Composition I, by providing additional class time and enhanced support for their 

success.  The discipline plans to offer dozens of sections of the new course in Fall 2021 

and student outcomes will be evaluated for continuous improvement.  Instructors will be 

trained on corequisite course delivery and pedagogy.   

 

• The Guided Self-Placement (GSP) process has continued to evolve since its creation in 

Winter 2020.  GSP allows students to make informed choices about what English course 

to take in order to maximize their success.  The process was created in collaboration with 

faculty to address student placement when in-person exams were no longer possible due 

to COVID-19.  So far, data show that GSP placement is comparable to the average 

success rate of other placement methods in terms of course completion.   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://catalog.oaklandcc.edu/course-descriptions/eng/


13 
 

Math: 

 

• Four new Math corequisite courses in Fall 2021 will allow students to begin at higher 

levels and accelerate developmental education progress with additional support. 

 

• STEM corequisite courses (cohort-based):  

MAT 1100E, MAT 1150E, MAT 1540E (+2 credits = 6 credits each) 

 

• Non-STEM corequisite course (comingled): 

MAT 1125E (+1 credit = 5 credits) 

 

• Corequisite pilot courses place students a level higher than previously & increase 

access to college-level math within one year 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://catalog.oaklandcc.edu/course-descriptions/mat/


14 
 

Course Success and Retention 
 

 
*Course success in Winter 2020 includes “Credit” grades for students who elected the 
Credit/No Credit option offered due the impacts of COVID-19. 

 

• Course success and retention were impacted by the challenges of pandemic, but remain 

within normal rate of fluctuation for data trends 

• Expanded resources provided additional support to students to promote their success 

• Economic and public health challenges continue to have a complex impact on student 

lives 

• In Winter 2021, OCC received the results of a Fall 2020 Student Financial Wellness 

Survey conducted by Trellis Research.  Trellis Company conducts this annual, 

nationwide student financial wellness survey to explore the connection between student 

finances and academic success.  Community colleges across Michigan took part in the 

survey through their particiation in the MI-BEST initiative at the Michigan Community 

College Association Center for Student Success, focused on building economic stability 

for students in support of their academic success.   

 

The survey was sent to 13,446 students and 1,288 responsed, for a response rate of 9.6%.   

Highlights results include: 

o 86% of respondents agreed or strongly agreed that COVID-19 has added to their level 

of stress, anxiety, or depression. 

o 58% say that their family’s finances have worsened as a result of the pandemic. 

o 54% have more of an obligation to support their family financially compared to 

before COVID-19.   

o 38% of respondents showed signs of food insecurity and 46% showed signs of 

housing insecurity 

OCC continues to expand and innovate supports to meet diverse student needs, to help 

promote their stability and academic success. 

https://www.trelliscompany.org/research/trellis-company-student-financial-wellness-survey/
https://www.mcca.org/MI-BEST-RESOURCES


15 
 

2019-20 Career and Technical Education (CTE) Indicators via Perkins V 

 
In 2018, the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006 was reauthorized as 

Perkins V via the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act.  This 

federal legislation provides funding and guidance to states to increase access to high-quality 

Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs that meet the evolving needs of learners and 

employers. 

 

At OCC, Faculty and Academic Deans review their program-level Perkins data as part of the 

cyclical program review process and provide action plans for improvement when needed.  

Beginning in the 2019-20 reporting year, the new Perkins V legislation included a revision of the 

indicators and target outcomes that institutions need to attain.  In the first year of these new 

indicators, OCC exceeded all state targets and most state averages. 

 
• 1P1: Of students who leave a CTE program, how many are retained in higher education, 

employed, or in service via volunteer programs/the military? 

• 2P1: Of students who leave a CTE program, how many received a degree, certificate, or 

external credential? 

• 3P1: What is the percentage of students enrolled in CTE programs leading to a non-

traditional field for their gender?  

 

 
 

Transfer Actions & Achievements 
 
A significant proportion of OCC students earn credits, certificates, and degrees before 

transferring to four-year institutions.  The ongoing expansion and improvement of transfer 

pathways streamlines the process for students and maximizes their progress toward future goals 

while saving both time and cost. 

• Continued exploration, development, and enhancement of articulation agreements and 

institutional relationships 

• Clarified course transferability details and pursued evaluation of additional courses to 

enhance the ability for student course transfer via internal transfer credit equivalency 

systems and/or the Michigan Transfer Network (MTN) 

https://www.michigan.gov/mde/0,4615,7-140-2629-496258--,00.html
https://www.mitransfer.org/


16 
 

• Requested a reevaluation of courses receiving departmental, elective or no credit in 

targeted areas such as computer information systems, manufacturing, engineering, and 

industrial technology.  These efforts resulted in an increase in the transferability, 

equivalency and utilization of courses, particularly in computer information systems. 

• The College Transfer Events webpage continues to be a popular resource for a variety of 

transfer opportunities hosted by the four-year institutions.  Additional revision and 

expansion of website content is underway, including a review and recommendations by 

an external consultant.  

• An update to the Transfer Credit Agreements Guides webpage now provides a Transfer 

Resources field with direct hyperlinks to the information students most often seek (an 

institution’s home page, transfer page, tuition & fees, scholarships, corresponding four-

year program and transfer advisor). Additional fields, “Program Available Online” and 

“Program Available Face-to-Face in Metro Detroit,” have also been added.  

 
• Established new and renewed articulation agreements with: 

o Baker College in Business, Computer Information Systems, Mental Health/Psych. 

o Central Michigan University in Nursing 

o College for Creative Studies in Interior Design 

o Eastern Michigan University in Computer Science, Information Assurance and 

Cybersecurity, Accounting/Business, Public Safety Administration, Social Work  

o Ferris State University in Business  

o Lawrence Technological University in Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering 

Technology  

o Oakland University – Renewed Reverse Transfer Agreement  

o Olivet College in Nursing  

o Saginaw Valley State University in Nursing  

o University of Michigan-Dearborn in Business 

o University of Michigan-Flint in Psychology, Nursing 

o Western Michigan University via an institutional-level agreement 

• Admissions hosted two Virtual Transfer Fairs, one in March and one in April with nearly 

50 participating transfer representatives   
 

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/counseling/transfer-days.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/transfer-credit-agreement/Data/Default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/transfer-credit-agreement/Data/Default.aspx


17 
 

 
 

 

An Equity in Transfer Initiative (ETI) grant with funding from the ECMC Foundation and the 

Ascendium Education Group has been awarded to Wayne State University in collaboration with 

Jackson College and Oakland Community College in the areas of First  Generation, Adult, 

African American, and  Hispanic students. The Equity Transfer Initiative is a partnership 

between community and four-year colleges to advance transfer pathways and align them to 

increase transfer and completion for underrepresented student populations. The goal of the ETI is 

to serve 6,000 students from the identified underrepresented groups over the two-year project 

period. This collaboration is between the American Association of Community Colleges in 

partnership with the American Association of State Colleges and Universities and the 

Association of Public Land-grant Universities. 

 
 

Completion 
 

The graduating class of 2021 has overcome a great deal in pursuit of their goals.  The 

perseverance of students, faculty, and staff made it possible for students to continue to advance 

in their postsecondary attainment even in the midst of a global pandemic and all the challenges 

that came with it.  Their hard work and accomplishment are to be celebrated and OCC is 

immensely proud to welcome them as alumni during this historic time.    

 

It is also an honor to welcome Michigan’s Lt. Governor, Garlin Gilchrist II, as Keynote Speaker 

for OCC’s Virtual Commencement.  Students will be personally recognized during the 

ceremony, through their participation in social media, and at a special Commencement car 

parade.  Congratulations to this historic class of graduates, for this accomplishment and for all 

they will go on to achieve! 
 
“Being involved in OCC built my personality and made me 
the person who I am today. If had to choose again whether I 
want to attend OCC or go straight to a four-year institution, I 
would definitely choose OCC again and again.” - Razan Alali 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.aacc.nche.edu/2021/01/21/equity-transfer-initiative-aims-to-increase-completion-for-minority-students/
https://www.ecmcfoundation.org/
https://ascendiumphilanthropy.org/
https://wayne.edu/
https://www.jccmi.edu/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/
https://www.aacc.nche.edu/2021/01/21/equity-transfer-initiative-aims-to-increase-completion-for-minority-students/
https://www.aascu.org/
https://www.aplu.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/commencement/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/images/gilchristcommencement.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/commencement/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/commencement/meet-the-grads/razanalali.aspx
https://www.aacc.nche.edu/2021/01/21/equity-transfer-initiative-aims-to-increase-completion-for-minority-students/
https://www.ecmcfoundation.org/
https://ascendiumphilanthropy.org/
https://www.aascu.org/
https://www.aplu.org/


18 
 

1.2: Promote educational excellence, innovation, and support 
 

The continuous pursuit of educational excellence includes both the quality of academic content 

and the success of student learning.  Numerous departments, faculty groups, and cross-functional 

committees at the College collaborate to continually advance the curriculum, teaching practices, 

and student learning outcomes.  Comprehensive student and academic support services provide 

students with resources, guidance, and growth throughout their College experience.  Current 

strategic actions in this area include the assessment of student experiences and Student Life 

needs at OCC.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Promote 
Educational 

Innovation & 
Excellence

Institutional & 
Program 

Accreditation/ 
Perkins

Division 
Planning

College 
Academic 

Senate

Teaching and 
Learning 
Center

Student 
Learning 

Assessment

Curriculum 
Review & 

Curriculum/ 
Instruction

Professional, 
Transfer, 

Community 
Alignment

Academic 
Planning & 
Standards, 
Technology 

Management

General 
Education/ 

Global 
Education



19 
 

OCC Teaching and Learning Center (TLC) 
 

The Academic Senate-approved TLC mission is as follows: 

“Effective professional learning is coordinated through the Teaching and Learning Center, where 

faculty and staff innovate and improve through the study of best practices in pedagogy, 

discipline-specific content, and current academic research. The Teaching and Learning Center 

utilizes internal and external data to inform and promote teaching excellence.” 

 

The OCC Teaching and Learning Center (TLC) houses the new Academy for Teaching 

Excellence and existing Institute for Academic Technology and Instructional Innovation. 

 

In Winter 2021, the TLC, with guidance from the Academic Senate’s Professional Learning 

Committee, identified professional learning in the area of diversity, equity, inclusion, and justice 

as a central focus for its work in 2021 and beyond. 

 

Academy for Teaching Excellence – Winter 2021 

 

Professional Learning  

• The TLC Faculty Fellow for Teaching Excellence, Shawn Dry, conducted 23 workshops 

for 128 faculty members this semester in topics ranging from active learning to student 

engagement to inclusive teaching strategies.   

• The OCC partnership with the Detroit Institute of Arts resulted in the delivery of four 

DIA workshops in Visual Thinking Strategies for 35 OCC faculty and academic staff. 

• Three faculty members conducted TLC workshops on the following topics: “The 

Trauma-Informed Instructor,” “GitHub Programming Tool,” and “WebAssign for Math 

Courses.” A total of 30 faculty members attended these workshops. 

• The Winter 2021 focus for professional learning was on building participation for all 

faculty (full-time and adjunct faculty), including 133 adjunct faculty members who took 

part in OCC workshops, orientations, Town Hall meetings, and other professional 

learning activities.  

 

Outreach 

Five OCC faculty members took on new leadership roles as TLC faculty facilitators in Winter 

2021. Monika Oery is leading efforts in global education, Mary Ann McGee is serving as adjunct 

faculty liaison, and Brianne Bouska, Michelle Fether-Samtouni, and Valerie Merriwether are 

working together as faculty student success facilitators to support faculty efforts around inclusive 

classroom strategies.  Shawn Dry continues as Faculty Fellow for Teaching Excellence and 

Barbie Hoag continues as Faculty Fellow for Technology Innovation. Outreach activities focused 

on surveying faculty about current practices and future professional learning needs. The work of 

these five faculty facilitators will continue in 2021-2022, with a focus on continued outreach and 

workshop delivery. 

 

Institute for Academic Technology and Instructional Innovation – Winter 2021   

The Institute for Academic Technology and Instructional Innovation, also known as ATG, is 

proud to be a part of OCC’s new Teaching and Learning Center (TLC).  The natural synergy 



20 
 

between teaching excellence and academic technology provides a wonderful opportunity for 

collaborative initiatives.  

 

While ATG has been offering training workshops on an ongoing basis since its conception in 

2004, in the beginning of March 2021, the Institute started coordinating its offerings with the 

Teaching and Learning Center.  This transition provides optimal opportunities for faculty 

attendance and ensures that efforts are not duplicated across the professional learning sessions 

offered.  To date, 15 different academic technology themed workshops help 73 faculty gain 

additional understanding and skills for their teaching and course delivery.  Spring workshops are 

underway and summer offerings will be promoted soon.  In addition to developing and 

facilitating workshops, the Academic Technology Group has participated in the Department 

Chairs Retreat, Adjunct Faculty Orientation, and monthly Town Hall meetings.  

 

Global Education Co-curricular Assessment 
 

• New process established to assess eight student outcomes regarding their experiences 

with Virtual Exchange and Virtual Study Abroad by administering pre and post surveys. 

o Change in expressions of interest in learning about cultures of other people 

o Change in expressions of respect for views of other people 

o Change in expressions of responsibility to take action to address global issues 

o Change in expressions of considering the perspectives of other people when 

interacting 

o Change in expressions of ability to communicate effectively with people from 

different native language 

o Change in expressions of interest in learning a new world language or additional 

world language 

o Change in expressions of interest in traveling and/or studying abroad. 

o Change in expressions of interest in participating in globally-themed activities  

 

 

Curriculum, Student Learning, and Evaluation 
 

The Office of Curriculum, Student Learning, and Evaluation (CSLE) within Institutional 

Effectiveness works collaboratively with OCC faculty and staff to provide data and information 

that supports effective teaching, learning, and services for OCC students. 

 

Expanded Degree Audit Summaries 

• The Office of Curriculum, Student Learning & Evaluation (CSLE) now conducts 

expanded degree audit summaries of all current and recent students, to help faculty reach 

out to students in an effort to increase persistence and completion. 

• This information and accompanying workshops help faculty identify students who have 

stopped-out, students who may only need one or two courses to complete, students who 

may have met all requirements for a certificate or other credential, as a mechanism to 

notify students of a less frequent course being offered, or to inform them of scheduling 

changes that impact their program of study.   

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/ie/curriculumevaluation.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/ie/curriculumevaluation.aspx


21 
 

• These processes use data to help faculty and program staff track and encourage student 

progress toward degree or transfer goal attainment.  Their outreach and efforts can help 

students meet with counseling for guidance and complete their remaining requirements. 

 

Curriculum Review  

Seven areas are completing their review season including Communications, Academic Support 

Center (academic courses), Collision Auto Repair, History, Sociology, Theatre and 

Technological Sciences program.  These reviews will lead to action plans for improvement in 

each area. 

 

Also, two General Education Outcomes (GEOs) went through a faculty-led review process this 

academic year as well, Aesthetic Awareness and Scientific Literacy.  These reviews update 

rubrics and verbiage of the outcomes/dimensions and help articulate the efficacy of the GE 

concept for the College and students. These reviews are part of a cyclical process to ensure the 

general education outcomes remain current. 

 

Assessment Workshop 

March 19: CSLE conducted a virtual workshop, Challenges and Solutions of Remote Assessment, 

in response to a Fall 2020 Assessment Operations survey of student learning coordinators who 

noted a desire for support in this area.  30 attended. 

 

Student Services Evaluative Framework   

The student services evaluative framework is a comprehensive, cyclical review of data and 

information related to student service departments at OCC.  This review guides continuous 

quality improvement and gives OCC staff data and information to guide decision-making.  Each 

student service department engages in the review on a 3-year cycle that culminates in the 

development of improvement plans.  This evaluation process shows a commitment to continuous 

quality improvement in student services that mirrors the cyclical review of academic programs 

and disciplines engaged in by the faculty. 

 

 

Student Service Satisfaction Survey Quotes
Library: “The simple fact of knowing that the OCC library has a 24 hour ask 
a librarian option gives me peace of mind. Attending classes while also 
working creates a very hectic schedule, but with the remote access to the 
library, I know I will always be able to do my research whenever I need.”

“I found my experience with Financial Aid to be super easy. This was the 
reason I never went to college. I’m glad I made the leap!”

“I decided during a pandemic, at 46 years old to change careers.  I needed 
this course to achieve that goal.  It was the best thing I could of done 
during this time frame.  The instructors went above and beyond. they were 
knowledgeable and I trusted them tremendously.  I'll never forget this 
experience and I'm looking forward to a rewarding career as a firefighter.”



22 
 

Academic Excellence & Student Achievement 
 

OCC received the 2021 “Inspiring Tomorrow Award” from the Troy Chamber 

of Commerce.  This award recognizes educational institutions, organizations 

and companies that have demonstrated an ability to engage individuals in the 

business community through developing or offering programs to promote higher education or 

skilled trades for our future workforce. 

 

 

OCC’s Forensic Team won second place at the Michigan Intercollegiate 

Speech League Novice Tournament.  The tournament provided students with 

competitive public speaking and performance opportunities to foster each 

student’s oratory skills and refine their professional presence. 

 

OCC’s Automobile Servicing program earned prestigious national accreditation.  

Onsite evaluation confirms OCC has a top-notch facility, impressive faculty, and a 

program that meets and exceeds all the criteria the ASE Education Foundation 

requires for accreditation.  Collision Auto Repair will pursue accreditation next. 

 

OCC’s Culinary Studies Institute received exemplary status with a 7-year grant 

of accreditation by the American Culinary Federation. 

 

At OCC’s 2020-21 Outstanding Student Reception, 

twenty-six students were nominated by faculty to receive awards based 

on criteria of leadership, initiative, creativity, and overcoming obstacles 

while achieving academic goals 

 

Students were also recognized via the Student Research Paper Contest run by the OCC Libraries 

and OCC Foundation, rewarding students from every campus with cash prizes for outstanding 

research papers written for OCC classes.  

 

OCC faculty created innovative at-home chemistry lab kits for student 

experiments, enhancing the remote learning experience and promoting student 

success.  Collaboration among the Chemistry department, bookstore, and 

environmental health and safety helped make the kits affordable, accessible, 

and safe.  Student feedback led to continual improvements, including detailed 

instructions and pre-lab lecture videos.   
 

OCC’s Culinary Studies Institute gains a new Executive Director of Culinary and 

Hospitality, Dawnmarie Yelcho, and is working to expand culinary programming 

for the community.   

 

The presentation by OCC researchers, Dr. Steve Simpson and Zheng Wang, on "Diversity, 

Equity, Inclusion, and Strategic Planning: How to Advance Institutional Policy through BI 

Tools” won best presentation at the Michigan Association of Institutional Research annual 

https://www.troychamber.com/winners-announced-for-tc-business-excellence-awards/
https://www.troychamber.com/winners-announced-for-tc-business-excellence-awards/
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAzMDguMzY1NzIxMzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL29ha2xhbmRjYy5zaGFyZXBvaW50LmNvbS9zaXRlcy9OZXdzQnJpZWZzIn0.rEqu-2D29-5FYtDqEjs-5FlHVKyUG1sSSaIt3VURvOGFwj8no_s_499821237_br_99590303969-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=k1PDsDHSiIITfSLM0rFd--WAI9U57lFyebDMeyAn6tQ&s=tZMbRdvOlleSrgszfPnfgEVbwAOTpasgbcuwgvQg4N4&e=
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/programs/aus/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/autoaccreditation.aspx
https://www.aseeducationfoundation.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/culinary/default.aspx
https://www.acfchefs.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/2020-21studentawards.aspx
https://occlibraries.blogspot.com/2020/11/outstanding-research-paper-award.html
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/chemistrylabkits.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/culinary/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/dawnmarieyelcho.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/dawnmarieyelcho.aspx
https://miair.org/
https://michiganspeech.wordpress.com/
https://www.troychamber.com/winners-announced-for-tc-business-excellence-awards/


23 
 

conference.  They were then invited to share the presentation with a global audience during the 

virtual Association of Institutional Researchers Forum in May.  

 

Cindy Carbone, Academic Dean of Communication, Arts and 

Humanities, was named a 2021 Phi Theta Kappa Distinguished 

College Administrator. This prestigious award recognizes Carbone 

for her outstanding support of student success.  

 

OCC student, Tala Alahmar, was elected International President of 

Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society and OCC’s PTK Chapters won thirty awards in the Michigan 

Regional Competition, including five national scholarships. 

 

Eunice Jeffries, Director of Government and Community Relations, was recognized as one of 

this year’s Women of Excellence by the Michigan Chronicle.  Jeffries joins an elite group 

comprised of the area’s most influential African American women who inspire others through 

vision and leadership, exceptional achievements, and participation in community service. 

 

Business Faculty member, Evelyn Chan, received a 2021 Faculty Member of 

the Year Award from The Alliance for Excellence in Online Education for 

online teaching excellence.  The award is given to faculty leaders who have 

demonstrated instructional quality and contributions to their curricular 

development, positive effectiveness in student learnings, and presented quality 

strategies to better guide their students in a dynamic online environment. 

 

OCC History and Social Science Faculty member Tony Baracco 

and Communications and English Faculty member Youmin Lee have been 

awarded the 2021-22 Asian and Global Studies Course Development Grant from 

the Global and Asia Centers at the University of Washington.  

 

OCC student leads others in environmental and social activism while helping the 

homeless 

 

OCC students are semifinalists and recipient of highly competitive, 

prestigious national community college transfer scholarship 

 

OCC students continue to provide enriching artistic experiences to the community through 

virtual music and theatre performances.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

https://www.airweb.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/studentlife/student-organizations/ptk.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/ptkawards.aspx
https://michiganchronicle.com/2021/04/07/2021-michigan-chronicle-women-of-excellence-honorees-announced/#/?playlistId=0&videoId=0
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/evelynchan.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/evelynchan.aspx
http://www.a4eoe.org/
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/chipbagstudent.aspx
https://www.jkcf.org/our-scholarships/undergraduate-transfer-scholarship/
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTA1MDMuMzk4MTgyOTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5vYWtsYW5kY2MuZWR1L25ld3MvcHJlc3MtcmVsZWFzZXMvbXVzaWNzaG93Y2FzZTIwMjEuYXNweCJ9.YJI3Xeoj-2DKXeApJFMn6NAvQE5Z7fuOedaHOqJzqwrQU_s_499821237_br_105741011057-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=EeFJ0XEIf2gum2p2hliOTw0E0QUfv6P91ME16ChHECw&s=kOhPLQW7qRaohFNE8hitttDsp-0-H40kKU4bSqXQDyY&e=
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/silentsky.aspx
https://oaklandcc.sharepoint.com/SitePages/OCC-Student-Tala-Alahmar-Awarded-Prestigious-Community-College-Transfer-Scholarship.aspx


24 
 

 

 

OCC Cares 

 

The College is committed to meeting student needs during this unique and challenging time. 

• Reduced student academic suspension through counselor intervention and 24/7 online 

workshops through the customized orientation platform 

• The OCC Foundation honored scholarship recipients and acknowledged sponsors for 

their generosity during the 29th Annual Virtual Scholarship Recognition Event, 

showcasing how scholarships have help OCC students reach their goals.  A record 809 

scholarships were awarded to students in Summer 2020, Fall 2020 and Winter 2021.  

• The Student Success Fund Matching Gift Challenge exceeded its fundraising goal. 

Thanks to the generosity of employees, retirees, alumni, and sponsors, $96,530 was 

raised during the Matching Gift Challenge to help students in crisis. 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/stanbroughpresentation.aspx
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=VgQe-RDf2_0&list=PLqQFTYbeB3XELqKwV05l9FV8twI6B7iJg&index=1
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/studentsuccessfund2021.aspx


25 
 

• OCC CARES Laptop Program: OCC is one of the only community 

colleges in Michigan using CARES Act funds to provide direct 

technology assistance to full-time students.  The $1 million laptop 

giveaway was designed to address increased technology needs of OCC 

students during this time of remote learning.  3,500 total laptops were 

available for students via the OCC CARES program in 2020-21 and 

Winter 2021 enrollment requirements changed to eight credits to allow more students to 

be eligible.  OCC’s VDI system uses data on each student’s semester class schedule to 

automatically provide access to the appropriate virtual software required for their classes.  

• OCC received an additional $3.7 million of funding to provide to students as part of the 

Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds from the Federal government through the 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act 2021.  Students can 

use the funds for the cost of attending college or emergency costs due to the Coronavirus 

including tuition, food, housing, health care, or childcare.  Financial aid students with a 

high level of financial need (such as Pell eligible students) automatically received the 

additional funding during Winter 2021.   

• The Libraries lent hundreds of books, mobile hotspots, and calculators 

to students via contactless pickup.  Further, four OCC librarians were 

recognized statewide for the exceptional work they do providing 

services to students. 

• Open Educational Resources (OER) are free online textbooks and 

learning materials.  OCC’s OER project is funded through a Foundation grant from the 

Provenzano Innovation Fund.  In academic year 2020-21 to date, 3,127 students saved 

$280,343 by using low or no-cost course materials at OCC.  More Faculty in the English 

and Communications disciplines have plans to adopt OERs in 2021.   

• Auburn Hills Counseling provided virtual sessions on how to stay motivated during the 

winter months and how to play for the future while staying in the present.   

• Student LIFE engagement and programming build 

connection, development & growth 

 

 

 

OCC’s Mental Health Task Force launched the JED Foundation Healthy Minds Study again in 

March 2021 (originally launched in 2017-18).  Results are forthcoming and will be used to guide 

the directions/actions of the committee moving forward.  The Healthy Minds Study is a 

collaboration with the JED Foundation and conducted by the University of Michigan. The 

national online survey assesses student mental health and provides evidence to advocate for 

services on campus, illustrates economic advantage of investing in resources and strengthens 

grant applications.   

The Mental Health Task Force is continuing to pursue major actions developed after the first 

round of the study (Jahquan Hawkins is contact): 

• Mental Health Training of Internal Stakeholders  

• Mental Health Leave Policy  

• Promote Connectedness  

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/occ-cares/default.aspx
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/crrsaa.html
https://dalnet-primo.hosted.exlibrisgroup.com/permalink/f/qo937i/01DAL_OCC_ALMA2174969820003250
https://libguides.oaklandcc.edu/coronavirus/contactless
https://libguides.oaklandcc.edu/oer/overview
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/foundation/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/counseling/default.aspx
https://healthymindsnetwork.org/hms/


26 
 

 

The newly developed OCC Safe App provides a campus alert device for emergency 

notifications, including emergency contacts, location sharing, support resources, 

reporting function to communicate with Public Safety, etc.   

 

 

 

Veterans Services 
 

In Winter 2021, major focus was placed on the administrative process of certifying and recording 

of student veterans/dependents enrolled in class for the winter and summer semesters.  

Additional management training involved account reconciliation, pulling of VA payment, and 

repayment to VA for school debt. 

 

In addition to helping students make full use of their Veterans educational benefits, the College 

supports students in several ways: 

• VA Work Study commenced in March and focuses on OCC Veteran social media 

communication, while working closely with the Student Veterans of America (SVA) 

Club that meets each month.   

• Community information and employment opportunities are emailed to present and past 

student veterans/dependents. 

• Military & Reserve/Guard Virtual Open Houses were held on February 10, March 24, 

and April 21.  Active duty and reserve/guard personnel were invited to visit OCC, with 

Admissions and Veterans Coordinators on hand.  

• Veterans Career Resources Virtual Workshop on March 11, coordinated with OCC 

Career Services  

 

Future Direction: 

• Coordinate with Admissions to conduct monthly Military & Reserve/Guard Virtual Open 

Houses 

• Coordinate with Career Services to conduct a Veterans Career Resources Workshop 

every semester 

• A return to campus goal is to establish one day per week in which the Veterans 

Coordinator attends a different campus for the entire day.  Student veterans/dependents 

will be informed ahead of time of when and where their coordinator will be on campus to 

assist them with veteran needs/concerns.   

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/my-safety/default.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/finaid/va-benefits/default.aspx


27 
 

 
 

Career Guidance & Opportunities 
 

• In March, OCC offered job fair preparation workshops and two virtual job fairs to help 

students connect to employers, one in the Health Professions and the other in 

Engineering, Manufacturing & Industrial Tech.  The events were made possible thanks to 

the Michigan Department of Labor and Economic Opportunity’s Office of Employment 

and Training. 

 

• OCC’s Office of Career Services also provided virtual workshops on job search 

techniques and interview skills. 

 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com_-3Furl-3Dhttps-253A-252F-252Furldefense.proofpoint.com-252Fv2-252Furl-253Fu-253Dhttps-2D3A-5F-5Fgcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com-5F-2D3Furl-2D3Dhttps-2D253A-2D252F-2D252Furldefense.proofpoint.com-2D252Fv2-2D252Furl-2D253Fu-2D253Dhttps-2D2D3A-2D5F-2D5Fapp.brazenconnect.com-2D5Fa-2D5FMichigan-2D5Fe-2D5FqYEVP-2D2526d-2D253DDwMFAg-2D2526c-2D253Duna-2D2DpXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw-2D2526r-2D253DgauwCuvU7CuQuW1rqA-2D5FBAVYGqx4EQwSW1SaxkpZK-2D5FI8-2D2526m-2D253D5Jta3atu5B7jqPlwbKvYp8AXNmzXInm-2D5FhJfODxKA14A-2D2526s-2D253DxyUMiPQDvVA319eUWY2zEi0vZMyY6oYlHpc93sgzPis-2D2526e-2D253D-2D26data-2D3D04-2D257C01-2D257CGillotteS-2D2540michigan.gov-2D257Cc3abcf27d1014fc604cc08d8c85f0aab-2D257Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1-2D257C0-2D257C0-2D257C637479657837020637-2D257CUnknown-2D257CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0-2D253D-2D257C1000-2D26sdata-2D3DoGdF885YWDslqeCoHrMcMslFYts0zyWxdN1xYS2U8u8-2D253D-2D26reserved-2D3D0-2526d-253DDwMFAg-2526c-253Duna-2DpXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw-2526r-253DgauwCuvU7CuQuW1rqA-5FBAVYGqx4EQwSW1SaxkpZK-5FI8-2526m-253D9M-2D6ubCaQIm5Z2S2WQS8JweVT5y0QOeSEFKtoTRxB80-2526s-253DyC4R9kAv1uFTc44iKlzdDt07ymmgkW-2DgCa-5FsWMbrX5U-2526e-253D-26data-3D04-257C01-257CGillotteS-2540michigan.gov-257C811e8b277a414178073b08d8c9474ce3-257Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1-257C0-257C0-257C637480655364020718-257CUnknown-257CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0-253D-257C1000-26sdata-3D0OuRVJDOTFVuZ-252FTebI5bBmPUbnnzvKs-252B2U5ou4-252FWkR4-253D-26reserved-3D0&d=DwMFAg&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=eScJjn8Wjs-MwAPSgOfo1cufqVDhuPsPdwhkA89HNKg&m=g-KYjpb67HwWsqVyQ-14hSY5XWpb7ByBuylQRcAW6rA&s=g1_wdKebxYijSogBPEz1BmsZLKCQ_FrYWnHq711A4sk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com_-3Furl-3Dhttps-253A-252F-252Furldefense.proofpoint.com-252Fv2-252Furl-253Fu-253Dhttps-2D3A-5F-5Fgcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com-5F-2D3Furl-2D3Dhttps-2D253A-2D252F-2D252Fapp.brazenconnect.com-2D252Fa-2D252FMichigan-2D252Fe-2D252F8PvmM-2D26data-2D3D04-2D257C01-2D257CGillotteS-2D2540michigan.gov-2D257Cc3abcf27d1014fc604cc08d8c85f0aab-2D257Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1-2D257C0-2D257C0-2D257C637479657837020637-2D257CUnknown-2D257CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0-2D253D-2D257C1000-2D26sdata-2D3DG7RepmNxFlPz31kWsrYhtxAKlePSPo63duJlk2Tlm-2D252Bk-2D253D-2D26reserved-2D3D0-2526d-253DDwMFAg-2526c-253Duna-2DpXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw-2526r-253DgauwCuvU7CuQuW1rqA-5FBAVYGqx4EQwSW1SaxkpZK-5FI8-2526m-253D9M-2D6ubCaQIm5Z2S2WQS8JweVT5y0QOeSEFKtoTRxB80-2526s-253DFzNP9wCnP-5Fxlpiie4oJHUxnX1mVjqsm3rSd-2DjjKvK6M-2526e-253D-26data-3D04-257C01-257CGillotteS-2540michigan.gov-257C811e8b277a414178073b08d8c9474ce3-257Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1-257C0-257C0-257C637480655364030669-257CUnknown-257CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0-253D-257C1000-26sdata-3D606CQUM-252F9i-252BxCuummEudl6ogAQ01sPODVphW4ZF-252Fu5s-253D-26reserved-3D0&d=DwMFAg&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=eScJjn8Wjs-MwAPSgOfo1cufqVDhuPsPdwhkA89HNKg&m=g-KYjpb67HwWsqVyQ-14hSY5XWpb7ByBuylQRcAW6rA&s=nXFnnRc7Cm794Cam1De2sgBagExSt-frj-XbPlXYn2A&e=
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/career/default.aspx


28 
 

• Royal Oak/Southfield Counseling offered multiple virtual seminars on academic success 

and career goals. 

 

 

Data, Research, and Analysis for Continuous Improvement 
 

Black/African American Student Survey 

 

In February 2021, a survey was sent to 3,300 students who self-identified as Black or African 

American in their application to OCC.  The survey was developed by a faculty/administration 

subcommittee of the retention, persistence, and completion strategic planning group.  The results 

will inform actions to improve the student experience and equity of completion.  266 students 

responded, for an 8% response rate, including the following highlighted results: 

• The top three responses for how students feel attending OCC were: welcome, motivated, 

and overwhelmed/busy.  While most students selected positive responses to the question, 

some expressed that the stress of the pandemic and challenges of remote learning had 

made their college experience more difficult. 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/counseling/default.aspx


29 
 

• When asked what makes them feel welcome and supported at OCC, most said teachers, 

counselors, and staff.  Throughout the survey results, students reiterate over and over 

how meaningful it is to them when they feel a connection and genuine support from the 

faculty and staff.   

“What makes me feel welcome is the faculty. Every person I've interacted with made me 

feel like I was in the right place and made me feel like they cared just as much about my 

educational goals as I do.”  

• Students felt overwhelmed by the workload and pace of assignments, particularly while 

juggling employment, multiple classes, the transition to remote learning, and 

responsibilities in their family and personal life.   

 

 

Of the options below, what could prevent you from continuing at OCC? 

(Select top response) (N=218) 

Answer  % Count 

Nothing will stop me from continuing at OCC  31.65% 69 

I do not receive financial aid and may not be able to continue to pay for my 

tuition, books, and supplies  
16.51% 36 

My work schedule might interfere with my school schedule  15.60% 34 

I receive financial aid, but it is not enough to cover tuition, books, and supplies  10.55% 23 

Other (students indicated health, stress, program/course availability, etc.) 8.72% 19 

I might not be able to maintain a high enough GPA  4.13% 9 

I don't know/Prefer not to say  3.67% 8 

I have childcare needs  2.75% 6 

I am not sure I can get a better job after I get my degree or certificate  1.83% 4 

2% (n=6)

8% (n=32)

9% (n=33)

18% (n=71)

28% (n=109)

35% (n=134)

I don't feel I can accomplish my goals

Other

Other OCC staff

My classmates/other students

OCC counselors

My OCC instructors

What at OCC makes you feel like you can accomplish your goals? 
(select all that apply) (N=385)



30 
 

I don’t really like attending OCC.  1.83% 4 

I don't always have reliable transportation to campus  1.38% 3 

I don’t have anyone in my life to cheer me on when school gets hard  1.38% 3 

 

 

Student Survey on Course Definitions 

This survey helped identify student perceptions and pinpoint elements of the schedule of classes 

and catalog that are most important for registration. 

334 students responded, resulting in the following highlighted results. 

• 92-95% of respondents found the definitions for “face to face,” “hybrid,” and “online 

synchronous/asynchronous” clear and easy to understand 

• Survey results also provided insight into how students search for classes and what course 

details are most important for them to know prior to registration 

• Recommendations for improvement based on survey results include: 

o Additional detail about technology required for a course 

o Additional detail about course content and learning outcomes/objectives 

o More student-friendly language 

 

 

Adjunct Professional Learning Survey 
March 2021: An Adjunct Professional Learning Survey was distributed to assess adjunct faculty 

needs related to communication, professional learning and engagement.  179/554 (32%) 

responded.  Highlights from the survey results include: 

• 70% of adjuncts have attended a professional learning course or training at OCC 

• 94% said they are interested in taking a professional learning course/training at OCC 

o 20% of adjuncts listed “becoming certified to teach online courses at OCC” as 

one of their top professional learning preferences 

• 52% of adjuncts include international/global content into their course content… 

o …of those who do not currently implement international/global content, 62% 

would like to learn how.  

 

 

1.3: Engage in continuous improvement through organizational analysis to 

nimbly respond to external opportunities and threats 
 

• OCC is developing actions and evaluative processes related to this strategic objective.   

• Existing data structures and planned expansion of evaluative and analytical tools will 

support forecasting efforts and the analysis of external opportunities and threats 

• National standards for organizational excellence can provide a structure for the College to 

utilize in its self-assessment and strategies for improvement 

 

 

 



31 
 

2.1: Create transparent data infrastructure that allows for high levels of 

accountability and engagement from all employees 
 

 

Data and Shared Goals 

 

Shared institutional performance metrics and an ongoing use of data support continuous 

improvement while building transparency and trust.  The rollout of data dashboards throughout 

the College (such as the Student Lifecycle Data Center) provide up to date information to help 

identify areas for improvement, set targets, and measure the success of actions and initiatives.   

 

Data Dashboards 

 

After a comprehensive development process, OCC has launched a dynamic, multi-faceted, 

interactive data dashboard with information about the academic progress of OCC's students, as 

well as general enrollment data.  These tools provide institutional transparency while 

empowering the College and community to use both current and trend data to better understand 

and support OCC’s diverse student population.  Several specialized internal dashboards are in 

progress, to empower OCC’s administration, faculty, and staff with deeper insights to help guide 

continuous improvement and institutional excellence. 

 

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/ie/dashboard/default.aspx


32 
 

2.2: Promote a culture of communication, collaboration, respect, and civility 
 

 
 

 

Communication and Collaboration 

 

Through structures and processes of clear communication, individuals and departments across 

the College can collaborate to build efficiency and maximize impact.  Growing a culture of 

collaboration brings the strength of multiple viewpoints and skillsets to institutional 

improvement, fostering an inclusive environment that values diverse voices and perspectives.   

 

Current strategic actions for this objective include:  

• Student Communication Governance 

• Collaborative Decision-Making Model 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



33 
 

3.1: Build an integrated diversity, equity, and inclusion infrastructure to 

support students, staff, and community    
 

OCC is guided by its mission statement for diversity, equity, and inclusion:  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

• College and Campus Committees for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion help guide 

initiatives, programming, policy, and practice  

• As an organization matures, it can progress from an appreciation of diversity to a focus 

on inclusion and equity. 

• A current strategic action for this objective is to deploy a DEI Climate Assessment tool, 

to evaluate the College across several areas, benchmark against peer institutions, and 

develop goals and strategies for improvement.   

 

 
 

Deepening Understanding & Engagement through  
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI) 

 

In Winter 2021, OCC began the development of a new DEI team led by OCC’s first 

ever Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, 

Andre Poplar, JD  

 

The College will ensure that diversity, in all its forms, is respected and 

valued by fostering and promoting an environment of inclusiveness. 

“As a mission-based organization, we are steadfast in upholding our core values for 

all whom we are privileged to educate and employ – and to ensure we foster an 

environment that is inclusive and empathetic to the inherent differences that exist 

within our community.” – Chancellor Peter Provenzano Jr. 

https://oaklandcc.edu/diversity/mission.aspx
https://oaklandcc.edu/diversity/mission.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/andrepoplarrevised.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/andrepoplarrevised.aspx


34 
 

 

 

January 12–15: OCC’s collegewide Diversity, Equity and 

Inclusion committee hosted a series of virtual events to further 

Dr. Martin Luther King’s legacy with important discussions 

about diversity and racial equity.   

 

  

 

February: Black History Month  

programming, learning & discussion 

  

 

‘ 

 

 

 

 

• February 17: During the National African American Read-In, the OCC Libraries held an 

event for all to enjoy literature written by African American authors, read by OCC 

students and faculty. 

 

• March 12: Participants learned about the 

Kolams of South Indian tradition and how they 

intersect with art, mathematics and culture in 

this event hosted by OCC’s Global Education 

Office 

 

• March 17: OCC Libraries shared a Celebrate Women's History Research Guide in 

recognition of Women’s History Month, developed in collaboration with the OCC 

Auburn Hills Campus DEI Committee.  The guide highlights the Smithsonian’s Women 

Who Shaped History collection, women in science and I.T., women leaders of the world, 

and the artistic achievements of Native women artists. 

• March 24: In recognition of Equal Pay Day, the OCC Royal Oak/Southfield DEI 

Committee shared a webinar, “Empowering Women Through Financial Literacy.” 

• April 14: An event explored the History of Racial Integration in Pontiac Schools  

https://libguides.oaklandcc.edu/Women/celebrate-womens-history
https://www.inceptia.org/PDF/Webinars/2018-04-12_13.00_Handling_Money_Like_a_GirlBoss_%20Empowering_Women_Through_Financial_Literacy.mp4
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAxMDcuMzI5NTA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL29jYy1oZWFsdGgtaHVtYW4tc2VydmljZS1wYW5lbC1kaXNjdXNzaW9uLmV2ZW50YnJpdGUuY29tLz9hZmY9ZW1haWwifQ.al-2D5LbHT9HtKjuIhkuBRPXNYrFlpKjLRAzGn53jXH1U_s_499821237_br_92809118153-2Dl&d=DwMFaQ&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=J0kJD3wu9WRaaEK2vEm6o6klq1cpy1r5ZBvWzA7v_vg&s=o-d5WstetuRJdVZkW69JAlX4J_2m3EBQ4TvU2VshW8A&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAxMDcuMzI5NTA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL29jYy1wZXJtaXNzaW9uLXRvLXdvbmRlci12dHMtaG9zdGVkLWJ5LWRpYS5ldmVudGJyaXRlLmNvbS8-5FYWZmPWVtYWlsIn0.CwhaVjNBuKo-5Famp7m4tREXU2D7riI0qzcbjaiUqKaSc_s_499821237_br_92809118153-2Dl&d=DwMFaQ&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=J0kJD3wu9WRaaEK2vEm6o6klq1cpy1r5ZBvWzA7v_vg&s=behpi6M-G7mlYSTAK_p3XesrGrqhdYiyCLA0OMu2T3Q&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAxMDcuMzI5NTA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL29jYy1kci1raW5nLXdvdWxkLW5ldmVyLXRha2UtYS1mcmVld2F5LmV2ZW50YnJpdGUuY29tLz9hZmY9ZW1haWwifQ.ptAtozUvgzOq8nmQP50px0g6Lqza2Erri5xbcH00g-5FA_s_499821237_br_92809118153-2Dl&d=DwMFaQ&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=J0kJD3wu9WRaaEK2vEm6o6klq1cpy1r5ZBvWzA7v_vg&s=nHIzsqTHSWV5wdY9gYPycqBEH574zI5AV1DYeMQq2hc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDMsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTAxMDcuMzI5NTA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL29jYy0yMDIxLWRyLW1hcnRpbi1sdXRoZXIta2luZy1qci1jb252b2NhdGlvbi5ldmVudGJyaXRlLmNvbS8-5FYWZmPWVtYWlsIn0.IeA0vGZpi49Pr0qG-2DwfZDTyrrGQujUy0HRvuBqUBDt8_s_499821237_br_92809118153-2Dl&d=DwMFaQ&c=una-pXNGImYYzRFBqkF0Hw&r=wdaAHBtyUaBusArfGq6BIV8vjOsC_6VSRJx3pfFmqho&m=J0kJD3wu9WRaaEK2vEm6o6klq1cpy1r5ZBvWzA7v_vg&s=oMP4FcaIW4TgOy9-8qTPI1g15wGZHn5OGWCsm5NCIjg&e=


35 
 

• April 23: Mary Kamidoi told her personal story of the dark days she spent living in a U.S. 

internment camp during World War II during “A Nisei Remembers,” a virtual event 

hosted by OCC's Global Education Office.  

• OCC’s Black Student Union (BSU) has been an active and vital voice in the College 

community since 2019, providing discussion and advocacy to promote growth, 

understanding, racial equity and justice.   
 

April 2021: In celebration of Diversity 

Month, the Auburn Hills Diversity, 

Equity, Inclusion and Justice Committee 

presented: CHEW ON THIS Zoom 

Webinar “Destination: Diversity- Moving 

Forward at OCC,” featuring a discussion 

with Andre Poplar, Vice Chancellor of 

HR and DEI. 
 

Expressing someone’s chosen name and pronouns is one way our 

college community can help support transgender and nonbinary 

students and educators.  It shows respect for a person’s identity and 

creates a more inclusive environment for all.  The College has been 

proactive in recognizing students, employees and others we 

interact with may use a chosen name other than their legal first 

name to identify themselves.  A study published by the Journal of 

Adolescent Health found mental health measurably improves when transgender young people are 

addressed by their chosen name throughout their lives. 

 

 

Conclusion 
 

The Winter semester of 2020 marked the time when the College needed to quickly transform to 

deliver remote instruction and services to students due to the global pandemic.  Over a year later, 

major efforts and innovations have helped to ensure a high level of quality in the student learning 

experience.  The College continually evaluates the needs of its students and connects them to 

resources for support.  Student surveys and focus groups show that a major reason why students 

succeed at OCC is the dedication and connection they feel with faculty and staff who have gone 

above and beyond to assist them in this time.  OCC’s greatest asset is its people and during the 

past year those students, faculty, and staff have worked together to overcome challenges and 

continue to achieve excellence in the college endeavor.  The College will continue to prioritize 

the well-being and advancement of its community, while empowering students to succeed in 

attaining their goals and building toward a brighter future.   

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.oaklandcc.edu/ge/
https://www.instagram.com/bsu_occ/?hl=en
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/news/press-releases/pronouns.aspx
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/student-records/chosen-name.aspx


36 
 

Acknowledgements 
 

Many thanks to the collaboration of numerous faculty, staff, and administrators from across OCC 

that contributed their insights, writing, review, and revision to this report, from its earliest stages 

through to the final draft. Their ongoing work and efforts help the students represented by these 

numbers to achieve success at OCC.  Special thanks to OCC’s Creative Services Department for 

their help developing the graphics featured in this report.   

 

 

 

Glossary 
 

CTE: Career and Technical Education programs provide students with core academic skills, 

employability skills, and technical, job-specific skills across a wide range of careers.  They meet 

employer needs for a skilled workforce in sectors ranging from manufacturing to IT to 

healthcare, hospitality, and public services. 

 

Conversion Rate: The number/percentage of admitted students that register and stay enrolled in 

the semester past the drop/add deadline.     

Diversity: The entire range of human and cultural differences that includes, but is not limited to, 

race, ethnicity, gender, gender identity and expression, sexual orientation, age, socioeconomic 

status, veteran status, physical and cognitive ability or attributes, religious affiliation, national 

origin, citizenship, and political beliefs. 

 

End of Session: Data and information based on the number of students enrolled in an entire 

semester and reported after a semester has ended, including late start and condensed format 

classes.   

 

Enrolled: In OCC’s definition within this report, an “enrolled” student registers for a course or 

multiple courses, then stays enrolled past the drop/add deadline, which includes submitting 

payment for that course.   

 

Equity in education is when educational policies, practices, interactions, & resources are 

representative of, constructed by, and responsive to all people so that each individual has access 

to, meaningfully participates in, and has positive outcomes from high-quality learning 

experiences, regardless of individual characteristics and group memberships. (Fraser, 2008; 

Great Lakes Equity Center, 2012) 

 

FAFSA: The Free Application for Federal Student Aid is the federal form that prospective and 

current students need to complete to determine their eligibility for financial aid. 

 

FTIAC: First Time in Any College students are those with no record of prior college attendance. 

 

Headcount: This is an unduplicated count of students, in which each student is counted once, 

even if enrolled in multiple courses or at more than one campus.   

 

https://www.acteonline.org/why-cte/what-is-cte/


37 
 

Inclusion: Involvement and empowerment where the inherent worth and dignity of all people is 

recognized.  An inclusive college promotes and sustains a sense of belonging for all; it values 

and respects the talents, beliefs, backgrounds, and ways of living of its community members.  

Everyone's unique perspectives and concerns are heard and their voices truly matter.   

 

Pell: The Pell Grant is the federal financial aid offered to students with the highest level of 

financial need.  Pell eligibility can show the economic diversity among a college population and 

help inform support services and processes.  

 

Persistence: In OCC’s definition within this report, persistence includes students enrolled in a 

fall semester that also enroll in the following fall semester, minus those that successfully 

complete a credential or transfer to a four-year institution. 

 

Registered: In OCC’s definition within this report, a “registered” student has some registration 

activity of adding/dropping courses to their schedule for that semester. 

 

Retention: In OCC’s definition within this report, retention includes students enrolled in a fall 

semester that also enroll in the following winter semester, minus those that successfully complete 

a credential or transfer to a four-year institution. 

https://studentaid.gov/understand-aid/types/grants/pell
https://www.oaklandcc.edu/open-door/registration.aspx


              
  

ACTION 
 

Board Agenda Item 7.1 
  June 15, 2021 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MCCA REPRESENTATIVE  
AND ALTERNATIVE REPRESENTATIVE 

 
 
PROBLEM/NEEDS STATEMENT 
 
In accordance with a motion passed by the Board of Trustees on September 17, 2007 to limit the 
term of service to one year ending on July 14th of each year, the Board is required to elect one 
trustee to serve as representative to the Michigan Community College Association (MCCA) 
Board of Directors for the 2021-22 fiscal year, and one trustee to serve as an alternate 
representative for the same period.   
 
 
MOTION 
 
Move the Board of Trustees elect ______________ as representative to the MCCA Board of 
Directors and that _______________ be elected as alternate representative to the MCCA Board 
of Directors for a term beginning July 15, 2021 and ending July 14, 2022. 
 



 

  
 

ACTION 
 

 Board Agenda Item 7.2 
 June 15, 2021 

 
 

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF  
GOVERNMENTS (SEMCOG) DELEGATE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

 
PROBLEM/NEEDS STATEMENT 
 
SEMCOG membership requires that an elected official serve as the delegate for Oakland 
Community College.  Therefore, a representative from the Board of Trustees needs to be 
appointed to serve in this capacity. 
 
 
MOTION 
 
MOVE the Board of Trustees appoint _________________ as a delegate to SEMCOG to serve a 
two-year term beginning July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023. 
 



 

 
  

 
ACTION 

Board Agenda Item 7.3 
June 15, 2021 

 
STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY 

RECONVEYANCE OF AUBURN HILLS 
F BUILDING OWNERSHIP 

 
 

PROBLEM/NEEDS STATEMENT 
 
The College entered into an agreement with the State Building Authority (SBA) in 1993 to accept 
$5,249,900 for Auburn Hills F Building renovation costs which were financed through bonds issued 
by the SBA. Those bonds have been paid in full and the College is now eligible to request a 
reconveyance of the property which had been deeded to the SBA by the College pursuant to the 
project financing and underlying lease. 

 
 
WHY THE ACTION IS BEING RECOMMENDED 

 
The College would like to accept ownership and reconveyance of Auburn Hills F Building at a 
cost of $1.   

 
 
MOTION 

 
Move the Board of Trustees adopt the resolution and certificate regarding resolution in addition to approving 
a quitclaim deed to reconvey the title of Auburn Hills F Building from the State Building Authority 
back to Oakland Community College. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

CERTIFICATE REGARDING RESOLUTION 
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE  

BULDING F RENOVATIONS 
 
 

 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that: 
 
 1.  I am the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Oakland Community 
College, a Michigan body corporate. 
 
 2.  The attached resolution is a full, true and compared copy of the Resolution 
of the Board of Trustees of Oakland Community College (the “Board”) Requesting 
Conveyance of Property for the Building F Renovations, Acceptance of Same and 
Accepting Obligations for the Facilities duly presented and adopted at a regular 
meeting duly called and held by said Board at Waterford, Michigan, on June 15, 
2021, at which a quorum was present and voting. 
 
 The following were present:   
 
 
 
 The following were absent: 
 
 
 3.  The attached resolution will be duly recorded in the minute books of the 
Board and is still in full force and effect. 
 
 4.  Notice of the meeting at which the attached resolution was adopted was 
given pursuant to and in full compliance with applicable law. 
 
 
 
 
 
        Dated:     
Susan Gibson, Secretary 
Board of Trustees  
 
 
 



 1 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE REQUESTING CONVEYANCE  
OF PROPERTY FOR THE BUILDING F RENOVATION AND ACCEPTING 

OBLIGATIONS FOR THE FACILITIES 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION of the Board of Trustees of Oakland Community College 
(the “Educational Institution”) requesting and approving the conveyance of property 
and to provide matters relating thereto. 
 
 WHEREAS, the State Building Authority (the “Authority”), a statutory body 
corporate created under provisions of 1964 PA 183, as amended, is authorized to 
acquire, construct, furnish, equip, own, improve, enlarge, operate, mortgage and 
maintain buildings, necessary parking structures or lots and facilities and sites 
therefore for use by the State or any of its agencies including institutions of higher 
education created pursuant to Sections 5, 6 and 7 of Article VIII of the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Educational Institution has been created and is maintained 
pursuant to Sections 7 of Article VIII of the Michigan Constitution of 1963; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has previously acquired the Building F Renovation 
and the site upon which it was constructed (the Building F Renovation and the site 
together are the “Facilities”) and the Authority leased the Facilities to the 
Educational Institution and the State of Michigan (the “State”) pursuant to a lease 
dated as of  February 1, 1999, as amended (the “Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the terms of the Lease, the Authority agreed to convey 
title to the Facilities to the Educational Institution upon request by the Educational 
Institution after the Bonds which financed the Facilities (the “Bonds” as defined in 
the Lease) and any additional bonds or other obligations as provided in the Lease 
are paid in full or provision for the payment thereof is made as provided in the 
Lease for consideration of one ($1.00) Dollar and the assumption by the Educational 
Institution of all monetary obligations and legal responsibilities for the operation 
and maintenance of the Facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bonds have been paid in full and all conditions established 
by the Lease as conditions precedent to conveyance of title to the Facilities by the 
Authority to the Educational Institution have occurred. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION THAT: 



 2 

 
 1.  The Educational Institution hereby requests that the Authority convey 
title to the Facilities by Quitclaim Deed to the Educational Institution. 
 
 2.  The consideration for the conveyance of the Facilities shall be one ($1.00) 
Dollar and the assumption by the Educational Institution of all monetary 
obligations and legal responsibilities for the operation and maintenance of the 
Facilities. 
 
 3.  The conveyance of the Facilities pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth above is approved and the Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Educational 
Institution is authorized and directed to execute any documents to accomplish the 
conveyance in such form as may be requested by the Authority and approved by 
counsel for the Educational Institution. 
 
 4.  All ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts thereof in conflict with this 
resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, repealed. 
 
 5.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021-0315215-A/SBA Oakland CC Building F Renovations Reconveyance/Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 

 
Oakland Community College 

Building F Renovation 
1999 Revenue Bonds, Series I 

 
 

 
 THIS QUITCLAIM DEED is made as of June _____, 2021 between the STATE BUILDING 
AUTHORITY (the “Authority”), a public body corporate and politic, organized and existing under the 
authority of 1964 PA 183, as amended (the “Act”), whose address is 430 W. Allegan St., Lansing, 
Michigan 48922, Grantor, and OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE (the “Educational Institution”), 
whose address is Oakland Community College, 2480 Opdyke Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 
48304, Grantee; 
 
 The Authority, as authorized by the Act, acquired the premises described on Exhibit A, and a 
perpetual nonexclusive easement appurtenant, described on Exhibit B, between a public road (now, 
Featherstone Road) and the premises, for the purpose of leasing the premises, including facilities 
constructed thereon, to the Educational Institution (the premises and the facilities together are the 
“Facilities”), and the Authority leased the Facilities to the Educational Institution pursuant to a 
lease dated as of February 1, 1999 (the “Lease”). 
 
 Under the terms of the Lease, the Authority agreed to convey title to the Facilities to the 
Educational Institution upon request by the Educational Institution after certain conditions 
specified in the Lease have occurred. 
 
 All conditions precedent, as established by the Lease, to conveyance of title to the Facilities 
by the Authority to the Educational Institution have occurred and the Educational Institution has 
requested the Authority convey title to the Facilities to the Educational Institution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY QUITCLAIMS to Oakland 
Community College the premises described on attached Exhibit A, together with all right, title and 
interest of the Authority in and to the premises; the access and utility easement described on the 
attached Exhibit B, and all the easements of record, other than easements associated with unrelated 
Authority owned premises on the campus of the Educational Institution, tenements, hereditaments 
and appurtenances belonging or appertaining thereto for the use of the Educational Institution for 
the sum of One ($1.00) Dollar, the receipt of which is acknowledged, and the assumption by the 
Educational Institution of all monetary obligations and legal responsibilities for the operation and 
maintenance of the Facilities. 
 
 This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation.  Generally 
accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, dust, odors, and other 
associated conditions may be used and are protected by the Michigan Right to Farm Act, Act No. 93 
of 1981. 



 

 
 THIS INSTRUMENT IS EXEMPT FROM COUNTY AND STATE REAL ESTATE TAX 
PURSUANT TO MCL 207.505(h)(i) AND MCL 207.526(h)(i), RESPECTIVELY. 
 
 This deed is not given in connection with the sale of a parcel of land.  Therefore, the right to 
divisions under Section 108 of the Land Division Act, Act No. 288 of the Public Acts of 1967 is not 
applicable. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the State Building Authority, by its Executive Director, and 
Oakland Community College, by its Board of Trustees Chair, have executed this instrument as of the 
date written above. 

 
     STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

  By                                                                             
Deborah M. Roberts 

  Its:   Executive Director 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in Ingham County, Michigan this         
day of June, 2021, by Deborah M. Roberts, as Executive Director, on behalf of the State Building 
Authority. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Printed Name, Notary Public 
                                    County, Michigan 
Acting in Ingham County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:                                  
 



 

 
      OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
       
 
 

  By                                                                              
             Pamela S. Jackson 

Its:  Board of Trustees Chair 
   

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
      ) SS. 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 15 day of June, 2021, by Pamela 
S. Jackson, as Board of Trustees Chair, on behalf of Oakland Community College. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Cherie A. Foster, Notary Public 
Oakland County, Michigan 
Acting in Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  01/11/2024 
 

 
 

 
(Names of all signatories must be typed or legibly printed in black  

beneath their signatures.) 
 
Drafted By and When Recorded Return To: 
 
Alan J. Lambert 
Assistant Attorney General 
Finance Division 
P.O. Box 30754 
Lansing, Michigan 48909 
Telephone:  (517) 335-7564 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021-0315215-A/SBA Oakland CC Building F Renovations Reconveyance/QCD 



EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 

Oakland Community College 
Renovation of Building “F” 

 
 

Legal Description 
 
 

A parcel of land in the NW ¼ of section 25, T3N, R10E, Oakland County, Michigan 
and more particularly described as commencing at the N ¼ corner of said section 25; 
thence S87°34’27”W 1165.26 feet, on the north line of said section 25; thence 
S00°00’00”E 1507.07 feet, to the point of beginning of this description; thence 
S82°09’49”E 348.00 feet; thence S07°50’11”W 283.00 feet; thence N82°09’49”W 
348.00 feet; thence N07°50’11”E 283.00 feet, to the point of beginning.   



EXHIBIT B  

Oakland Community College 
Renovation of Building "F" 

Easement Description 

Commencing at the Nl/4 corner of section 25, T3N, Rl OE, City of Auburn Hills, Oakland County, 
Michigan; thence S87°34'27"W 815.35 feet, on the north line of said section 25 to the point of 
beginning and centerline of a I 00 foot wide strip of land; thence S03°09'3 l ''E 882.25 feet; thence 
S44°24'25"E 286.29 feet; thence Sl6°20'56"E 269.51 feet; thence S34°2l'57"E 200.42 feet; thence 
367.77 feet, on the arc of a curve to the right with a central angle of 131 °41'50", a radius of 160.00 
feet and a long chord bearing and distance of S 14°24'05"W 291 .99 feet; thence S87°28'20"W 403.69 
feet, to a point of ending. The sidelines of this easement description shall be shortened or 
lengthened to close on themselves, the north line of section 25 and the parent parcel description. 

B-l



 

 
  

 
ACTION 

Board Agenda Item 7.4 
June 15, 2021 

 
MODIFICATION OF AUBURN HILLS 

CAMPUS BUILDING NAME  
 
 

PROBLEM/NEEDS STATEMENT 
 
At their August 3, 1978 meeting, the Oakland Community College Board of Trustees approved the 
naming of the science building at the Auburn Hills Campus to be the Joseph E. Hill Science 
Building. The current renovation construction project has changed the location of the science 
classes.  In order to extend the building’s honorarium name in the same location, it is recommended 
the Board approve a modification to the building name to the Joseph E. Hill Building. 

 
 
WHY THE ACTION IS BEING RECOMMENDED 

 
In 1968, Joseph E. Hill was the second president of the College and as such was granted the honor 
of having his name placed on building C on the OCC Auburn Hills Campus, which at the time was 
used for Science classes.  To clarify the use of the building and at the same time preserve the 
honorarium, it is recommended the word “Science” be dropped from the building name.  

 
 
MOTION 

 
Move the Board of Trustees adopt the resolution regarding modification of the Auburn Hills Campus building 
name from Joseph E. Hill Science Building to Joseph E. Hill Building. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
  

 
 
 

RESOLUTION FOR MODIFICATION OF 
AUBURN HILLS CAMPUS BUILDING NAME 

 
 
 

AT A REGULAR MEETING of the Board of Trustees of Oakland Community College held on the 
15th day of June, 2021. 

 
PRESENT:  

 
 

ABSENT:     

 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Trustee ________________________ 

 
WHEREAS,  building C at the Auburn Hills Campus named the Joseph E. Hill Science Building is being renovated 

and will not currently be used for science instruction; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CEO has recommended the name of the Joseph E. Hill Science Building be 

changed to the Joseph E. Hill Building to clarify the use of the building while preserving the honorarium 
to Joseph E. Hill for his extraordinary service to the College as its second President; and 

 
WHEREAS, Board of Trustees Policy 1.14 Naming of Physical Property and Events requires as 

affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board membership to approve the naming of physical property; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees hereby approves 
modification of the name of the Joseph E. Hill Science Building at the Auburn Hills Campus to the 
Joseph E. Hill Building. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:   
 
 
NAYS:   
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

  
 
         _____________________________________ 

Susan Gibson, Secretary 
Oakland Community College Board of Trustees 

 
 


	Confidentiality Notice
	061521 BOT Meeting Agenda
	051821 BOT Minutes
	4.2 051821 Closed Session Minutes
	June 15, 2021

	6.1 Winter 2021 Monitoring Report FINAL
	7.1 MCCA Delegate and Alternate
	June 15, 2021

	7.2 SEMCOG Representative.doc
	June 15, 2021

	7.3 Reconvey AH F Building
	Board Agenda Item 7.3
	WHY THE ACTION IS BEING RECOMMENDED
	MOTION

	7.3.a Reconveyance Certificate
	7.3.b Resolution updated 5-28
	7.3.c Quit Claim Deed
	7.3.d Exhibit A
	7.3.e Exhibit B
	7.4 AH Building Name Revision
	Board Agenda Item 7.4
	WHY THE ACTION IS BEING RECOMMENDED
	MOTION

	7.4.a AH Building Name Revision Resolution

